Christiansburg Planning Commission
Minutes of November 10, 2014

Present: Ann Carter
Harry Collins
Steve Huppert
Joe Powers, Vice-Chairperson
Craig Moore, Chairperson
Nichole Hair, Secretary Nom-Veting

Absent: Matthew J. Beasley
David Franusich
Jennifer D. Sowers

Staff/Visitors: Sara Morgan, staff
Cindy Wells Disney, Montgomery County Planning Commission
Thom Rutledge, 2765 Roanoke Street, SHAH Development
Kevin Conner, Gay & Neel, Inc.
Faye Rakes, 40 Patricia Lane
Emily Oliver, 80 Patricia Lane
Gerry Oliver, 80 Patricia Lane
C.L. Bohanon, 10 Patricia Lane

Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia, following the pledge of allegiance, to
discuss the following items:

Public Comment.

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment. There were no public
comments. Chairperson Moore closed the floor for public comment.

Approval of meeting minutes for October 20, 2014.

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Commissioner Carter made a motion
to approve the Planning Commission meeting minutes. Commissioner Huppert
seconded the motion, which passed 5-0.

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — {{1)) —
26A) in the B-3 General Business District.

Chairperson Moore introduced the request and asked the applicant to speak about
the Conditional Use Permit Request.



November 10, 2014 p. 2

Planning Commission public_hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — ({(1)) —
26A) in the B-3 General Business District (continued).

Thom Rutledge, Project Manager with SHAH Development, explained the request is
for townhomes. Mr. Rutledge noted the property was purchased in 2008 at the
height of the economy. The property owner has sat on the property since then. Mr.
Rutledge state a piece of the property was sold, which is now the Learning Ladder
Daycare Center. The front piece has been actively marketed however; nothing has
been going on at that end of Roanoke Street. Mr. Rutledge stated the application is
for 12 townhomes, including both two and three bedroom units. Mr. Rutledge added
the townhomes will be set up to be subdivided. Each unit would be an individual lot
and have a two hour fire wall separating the units in order to convey units
separately. Mr. Rutledge stated SHAH Development has set up units like this to be
rented or lease to own. Mr. Rutiedge stated he believes the proposal is a good fit for
the area. Mr. Rutledge added there has not been any interest in the property and it is
time to do something with the property. Mr. Rutledge stated the property owner do
not wish to sit on the property for another six to seven years.

Faye Rakes, 40 Patricia Lane, asked if any improvements would be made to Patricia
Lane. Ms. Rakes spoke about the draining issue that occurs during rain.
Chairperson Moore stated that there are not any improvements planned for Patricia
Lane at the present time. He added that the applicant would be required to manage
their stormwater through the development of their property.

Chairperson Moore asked questions be directed to the Planning Commission during
the public hearing.

Commissioner Powers asked Ms. Morgan for the aerial of the site to be pulled up on
the projector. Mr. Rutledge pointed out Patricia Lane and Ms. Rakes development.
He noted that he has been to the site and noticed the issues Ms. Rakes was
referring to. Mr. Rutledge pointed out the intersection of Patricia Lane and Roanoke
Street where he believes the drainage and road issues occur. Mr. Rakes confirmed
that the intersection is what his wife was referring to. Mr. Rutledge then explained
what Chairperson Moore was explaining earlier. The applicant cannot allow the
stormwater to run off any faster than it currently runs while its grass. Mr. Rutledge
noted the engineer for the project, from Gay & Neel, is present. Mr. Rutledge stated
the development would detain and treat the water on site. Mr. Rutledge does not
believe the stormwater at this property would impact Ms. Rakes’ concern. He added
that the drainage and road concerns of Ms. Rakes' are also of concern for the
proposed development.

Commissioner Powers asked Mr. Rutledge about how the drainage and road issues
came about. Mr. Rutledge does not believe a pipe is at the intersection of Roanoke
Street and Patricia Lane. Ms. Rakes agreed with Mr. Rutledge's statement. Mr.
Rutledge noted that he will work with Town staff during the site plan review process
in attempts to correct the issues.



November 10, 2014 p. 3

Planning Commission public hearing on_a_Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — ((1)) —

26A) in the B-3 General Business District (continued).

Chairperson Moore thanked Ms. Rakes for raising that concern. Ms. Hair will look
into the drainage and road issues. Chairperson Moore concluded the conversation
by noting that Town staff and the developer will work together to address stormwater
runoff.

Gerry Oliver, 80 Patricia Lane, asked if there was a safety issue in regards to the
day care located next to the proposed development. Chairperson Moore noted the
proposed 6’ tall privacy fence located along the property line adjoining the day care.
He added that the Learning Ladder should have security measures in place to
protect the children.

Commissioner Powers noted that the current zoning is B-3 General Business. He
asked Mr. Rutledge if the property has been marketed as a business use. Mr.
Rutledge confirmed. Commissioner Powers stated he believes that a residential use
would be preferable to a business. Commissioner Powers added a business would
have traffic throughout the day, while a residential development would have more
traffic at morning and evening hours. Commissioner Powers stated he believes
traffic would be less overall for a residential use than a business use.

Ms. Rakes asked if the exit of the development would be on Patricia Lane. Mr.
Rutledge stated the only entrance/exit will be on Patricia Lane.

Ms. Rakes asked if the applicant will be developing back to the motel. Mr. Rutledge
stated the development does not extend to the hotel, as there is another property
owner between the proposed development and the hotel. He added that the
adjoining property has a limited amount of frontage but is a deep lot. Mr. Rutledge
believes the property owner may be holding out for a hotel or motel.

Emily Oliver, 80 Patricia Lane, asked about the exterior of the units and if they will
be comparable to her development. Ms. Oliver stated she does not want the value of
her home to decrease. Mr. Rutledge stated the proposed townhomes will not be
comparable because they will not have an attached garage.

Ms. Oliver asked the price range of the townhomes. Mr. Rutledge stated he would
like to market the townhomes in the $160,000 range. Ms. Oliver asked if the
applicant will try to sell the units. Mr. Rutledge stated that he would prefer to sell the
units but the units could be rented.

Ms. Oliver asked if the townhomes will be entirely vinyl siding. Mr. Rutledge stated
the units will have a block/brick foundation with the rest of the unit being vinyl. Mr.
Rutledge stated he hopes the townhomes will be a craftsmen style with false
dormers for aesthetics.



November 10, 2014 p. 4

Planning Commission _public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, L LC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — ({(1)) —
26A)} in the B-3 General Business District {continued).

Mr. Rutledge added there will be different colored vinyl and there will be vertical and
tap siding vinyl. Mr. Rutledge added he colors will be neutral, such as light yellow,
tan, beige, and green.

Ms. Rakes asked if the townhomes would be two stories. Mr. Rutledge confirmed all
the townhomes would be two stories.

Ms. Oliver asked if there will be a Home Owners Association. Mr. Rutledge
confirmed there will be a Home Owners Association to take care of the maintenance,
lawn care, and the dumpster.

Ms. Oliver asked where the mailboxes would be placed. Mr. Rutledge noted the
mailbox will be a gang box located near the entrance. All units will be in one square
mailbox.

Chairperson Moore noted that the back and forth is normally not allowed during the
public hearing but as there is a small group, the meeting is less formal.

C. L. Bohanon, 10 Patricia LLane, asked about the landscape treatments placed on
Patricia Lane as a buffer between the two developments. Mr. Rutledge noted the
sidewalk on Roancke Street and tying the sidewalk into their development. Mr.
Rutledge stated landscaping would be installed around the entrance of the
development. This would define the entrance as a separate development. Mr.
Rutledge added the area would be heavily landscaped. Mr. Rutledge noted that the
applicant would like pay into an in-lieu fee rather than installing sidewalks. Ms. Hair
stated indicated the sidewalks would have to be installed. Mr. Rutledge stated the
surrounding properties that have sidewalks do not adjoin this parcel. Mr. Rutledge
added he would rather give the money to the Town to construct sidewalks where
they are needed and be used. Ms. Hair stated that the other properties may be
developed in the future, which would allow for sidewalk connections to the proposed
development. Commissioner Powers noted the sidewalks are a bit of the chicken
and egg argument. Commissioner Powers agreed it is logical to stop the sidewalks
on Roanoke Street rather than continuing down Patricia Lane. Mr. Rutledge
reiterated that either side of the entrance will be heavily landscaped. Commissioner
Powers asked about the landscaping requirements. Ms. Hair stated the applicant will
be required to follow the R-3 regulations for landscaping. Ms. Hair added that the
Planning Commission can condition further.

Chairperson Moore asked Mr. Bohanon if he had any further questions. Mr.
Bohanon explained that he is a landscape architect and was curious if the
landscaping would screen the development. Chairperson Moore explained that the
Planning Commission is dealing with the Conditional Use Permit at the present time.
The property is zoned for a business use and by right they could put a business in
there.



November 10, 2014 p. 5

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roancke Street (tax parcel 501 — ({(1)) —
26A) in the B-3 General Business District {continued).

Chairperson Moore explained conditions could be placed on the development
through the Conditional Use Permit before them tonight. The conditions would bind
the developer to doing certain things. If the Conditional Use Permit was approved,
the site plan would go to staff, which would ensure the conditions and ordinance are
enforced in the development of the site. Chairperson Moore stated the public
hearing allows the public to put forward ideas for conditions for the Planning
Commission to consider. Chairperson Moore recognized landscaping seems to be a
concern.

Mr. Oliver asked if the units would be stick-built or a modular. Mr. Rutledge stated
the units will be modular.

Ms. Oliver asked about the required number of parking spaces per unit. She
expressed concern about overflow parking in regards to three bedroom units. Mr.
Rutledge stated the units will not be rented by bedroom but the unit. Chairperson
Moore noted that the ordinance regulates the number of parking spaces the units
are required to have. Ms. Oliver asked what would happen with overflow parking.
Chairperson Moore stated they could park in areas that are not prohibited by the
Town ordinance. Commissioner Powers asked what the required parking would be.
Ms. Hair stated there would need to be two parking spaces per unit. Ms. Oliver
asked if they would be allowed to park across the street in her development. Ms.
Hair stated that would not be allowed as that is private property. Ms. Hair stated the
Town allows on street parking. Ms. Rakes added that there is no parking allowed on
either side of Patricia Lane. Chairperson Moore stated that if someane were to park
there, she would have a call to have the car removed.

Mr. Conner stated the plan for the development was placed in the day care for the
parents to review. He has not received complaints about the plan. Mr. Moore noted
the placement of the privacy fence between the units and day care. Mr. Rutledge
stated that vegetative screening could be used. Chairperson Moore noted that the
dumpster will be screened but nothing else is proposed on that side of the
development. Mr. Rutledge confirmed and stated the adjoining property is
undeveloped land aside from a house in rough shape. Mr. Conner stated that the
areas where the children can go are fenced.

Ms. Rakes asked why a dumpster will be used as she puts her trash out to be
collected by the Town. Chairperson Moore stated that having a dumpster would
lessen the amount of trash cans on Patricia Lane for pick-up, which could restrict
traffic flow on Patricia Lane.

Commissioner Huppert asked for clarification on the number of units. Mr. Rutledge
stated there will be twelve units.



November 10, 2014 p. 6

Planning Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — ({1)) -
26A) in the B-3 General Business District {continued).

Chairperson Moore stated that the public hearings do not normally run in this
manner but thanked the public for the respect and order shown during the meeting.

Chairperson Moore closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Collins asked what the proposed conditions are. Ms. Hair stated there
are no proposed conditions at the present time. Typically, Ms. Hair creates the
proposed conditions after the public hearing.

Chairperson Mocre asked if the Commissioners would like to see any further
conditions other than the property be developed in substantial conformance with the
concept plan that has been presented tonight.

Commissioner Powers stated he likes the privacy fence between the development
and the day care; however, he does not care for the privacy fence between the
development and Roanoke Street. Commissioner Powers asked if the topography
lends itself to an earth and berm vegetation instead of a privacy fence. Mr. Conner
stated he believes that would eat up the backyard due to the slope of the land. Mr.
Rutledge added he is not opposed to a vegetative buffer as opposed to a privacy
fence; however, there is not a lot of room to fit that in. Mr. Rutledge added that the
idea was to screen the units from other uses and improve the likelihood of the units
to sell. Chairperson Moore stated that the applicant is boxing in the units in a good
way. Chairperson Moore added the fence would separate the units from the public
right-of-way. Commissioner Powers recognized the need to screen lights, headlights
and noise.

Commissioner Powers asked if the applicant has used any other techniques in
another development apart from the privacy fence. Mr. Rutledge noted at Cambria
Crossing a berm was created to separate the first eight units from the adjacent
property. Mr. Rutledge added two rows of Cyprus trees were installed that have
buffered the units beautifully. Commissioner Powers asked if there is a need to cut
them down. Mr. Rutledge stated the Home Owners Association is now responsible
for the maintenance of the trees. Commissioner Powers requested Mr. Rutledge
return to the next meeting with ideas of how to buffer the units from Roanoke Street.
Mr. Conner stated that a power line limits the height in that location. Mr. Rutledge
added that a power line bisects the property and will need to be relocated. Mr.
Rutledge and Mr. Conner noted the public utility easement that runs from the
existing townhomes to the west. Mr. Rutledge added that he believes the fence is
the better alternative if existing utilities need to be maintained.



November 10, 2014 p. 7

Planning_Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — ((1)) —
26A) in the B-3 General Business District {(continued).

Commissioner Powers noted that twelve would be the maximum number of units
they could fit on the site; however, the Planning Commission could condition a
smaller number of units, like eleven. Commissioner Powers stated if that were to
happen, the extra space could be used as overflow parking. Commissioner Powers
added that he will have to figure out the number of units he is comfortable with
between now and the next meeting. Mr. Rutledge noted that two parking spaces is
the current requirement. Commissioner Carter stated she was concerned with the
parking due to the units being two and three bedrooms. Mr. Rutledge noted Mr. Neel
owns the Learning Ladder and would think overflow parking could be parked there in
the evening or on the weekend. Mr. Rutledge added parking does not have an issue
in similar developments. Mr. Conner noted that the Town just lowered the
requirement from 2.5 parking spaces to 2 parking spaces. Commissioner Carter
stated there may be families living there with teenagers and therefore have more
than two cars. Mr. Rutledge stated there is overflow parking available in the gravel
and asphalt parking lots adjoining the development.

Mr. Rutledge asked the Patricia Lane residents if they have issues with parking in
their development. Ms. Rakes stated they do not have an issue with parking
because they have parking in their garage and in front of it.

Ms. Rakes asked what would happen if the state widens Route 460. Commissioners
and the applicant’s representatives discussed the width of Roanoke Street.

Chairperson Moore noted that the conformance to the concept plan has been
discussed as a possible condition along with the maximum number of units allowed.
Commissioner Powers stated he likes the idea of putting a lot of the landscaping out
front to set off the units and distinguish it from the other side of the street. He asked
if the ordinance provides flexibility of where the landscaping could be placed. Ms.
Hair confirmed there is flexibility with placement of landscaping. Commissioner
Powers asked Mr. Rutledge to bring landscaping ideas back to the Planning
Commission at the next meeting.

Commissioner Powers asked if the front side of the fence would face Roanoke
Street or the townhouses. Mr. Rutledge stated he thinks the front side would be
towards Roanoke Street. Commissioner Powers asked if that would be the case for
the Learning Ladder. Mr. Rutledge noted that all of the play areas are already fenced
in.

Mr. Rutledge pointed out the 15 foot parking setback from Patricia Lane. Mr.
Rutledge indicated he believes there could be four more parking spots added.
Commissioner Carter noted that would take up landscaping area. Mr. Conner added
that there would still be 15 feet of landscaping available. Chairperson Moore asked if
the parking could be permeable pavers.



November 10, 2014 p. 8

Planning_ Commission public hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — {{(1)) —
26A) in the B-3 General Business District {(continued).

Mr. Rutledge stated permeable pavers will be used throughout. Mr. Conner stated
the permeable pavers will be used for sidewalks. Chairperson Moore asked if the
overflow spaces for visitors be permeable pavers. Mr. Conner stated that could be
an option.

Commissioner Powers asked if there will be stormwater detention on the site. Mr.
Conner confirmed there will be stormwater detention underground.

Commissioner Collins noted that additional parking could be placed near the
dumpster if the land will allow it. Mr. Rutledge stated it would be hard to make those
turns without killing the spot on either end.

Commissioner Huppert asked if the price range was $160,000-$190,000. Mr.
Rutledge believes they will be a little north of $160,000.

Chairperson Moore noted the Planning Commission will not take public comment at
the next meeting and will map out the conditions to propose to Town Council. The
next Planning Commission meeting will be November 24, 2014. Chairperson Moore
invited the public to listen to the discussion at the next meeting. He explained Town
Council will have a public hearing and vote on the application following that meeting.
Commissioner Huppert noted the importance of attending the Town Council
meetings. Chairperson Moore added that Planning Commission takes the public
comments and form them into a recommendation for Town Council.

Town Council may make changes to the recommendation but generally they vote on
the recommendation. Commissioner Powers noted that the concerns can be
addressed through the Planning Commission's recommendations. Chairperson
Moore asked the Commissioners if they have any of conditions to consider.

A gentleman, that did not state his name or address, asked if the applicant would
consider doing the development in one color of vinyl. Mr. Rutledge asked if they
would like if both ends were in the same color. The gentleman does not believe the
multiple colors look good. Ms. Rakes believes the different colors cheapen the
townhomes. Mr. Rutledge noted that many people like the use of the different colors.
Commissioner Powers noted that the different colors are nice in that they show the
townhouses as individual units rather than the single color of an apartment complex.
Chairperson Moore noted the use of one color could make the townhouses look
industrial. Commissioner Powers noted there are pros and cons either way.



November 10, 2014 p. 9

Planning Commission public_hearing on a Conditional Use Permit request by SHAH
Development, LLC for residential use at 2765 Roanoke Street (tax parcel 501 — {(1)) -
26A) in the B-3 General Business District (continued).

Chairperson Moore asked Mr. Rutledge if there are other developments in Town that
he has used different colors. Mr. Rutledge stated Cambria Crossing, on Phoenix
Boulevard, is in different colors. He added that as the market and economy has
changed, SHAH has been forced to change and they are now going in with the
different colors. Chairperson Moore asked about the location of Cambria Crossing.
Mr. Rutledge stated Cambria Crossing is off Cambria Street, right past The
Farmhouse restaurant. Commissioner Powers asked if they were the newer units.
Mr. Rutledge confirmed they are the newer units on the right. Commissioner Powers
noted that the Planning Commissioners can visit Cambria Crossing. Chairperson
Moore asked if the proposed development would be similar. Mr. Rutledge confirmed
they would be similar, not exact.

Chairperson Moore thanked the public for their attendance and noted Town
Council’s public hearing will be held December 9, 2014. The Town Council may vote
on the request on that date. Chairperson Moore stated the Planning Commission
wants the community to be a nice area but grow as well.

Other Business.

Ms. Hair noted there will be a Neighborhood Planning Open House on November
20, 2014. The flyers placed at each seat are for the Planning Commissioners to
distribute around town. Commissioner Powers stated the meeting will be heid at
the Park Street Methodist Church from 3:00-7:00pm. He noted the
Comprehensive Plan Subcommittee would like to see Planning Commissioners
at the Open House. Chairperson Moore asked Ms. Hair to email the list of
locations that have already been asked to hang a flyer. Planning Commissioners
will contact Ms. Hair by phone or email to update the list. Commissioner Collins
asked Commissioner Huppert to mention the Open House to Town Council,
especially Councilmen Showalter since his lives in the neighborhood.

Ms. Hair noted that the meeting information is located on the Town’s website.
Ms. Hair added the Parks and Recreation Center and Aquatic Center have been
contacted and will be posting the flyer on their electronic screens and bulletin
boards.

Ms. Hair stated both Town Council and Department Heads have been notified by
email of the meeting. Commissioner Collins noted the library would be a good
location to post the flyer.



November 10, 2014 p. 10

Qther Business — (continued).

Ms. Hair informed the Planning Commission that the Town and the New River
Valley Health District have been awarded monies through the Obesity Prevention
Grant. The funding will be for crosswalks, ADA accessibility and signage.
Chairperson Moore thanked staff for the quick turnaround. Ms. Hair stated the
Planning Department is excited about the new partnership with the New River
Valley Health District. She added that the Bikeway Walkway Committee identified
the need for crosswalks in the Downtown area in order to promote walkability and
create connectivity. Commissioner Collins added that the Planning Department is
awesome. Chairperson Moore reiterated that notion. He went on to say that the
Planning Department had to put things on hold to get that done and appreciates
the department working hard to make that happen then catch up on what came in
during that time.

Commissioner Huppert stated that he was one of the few that voted in favor of
the Falling Branch rezoning request. Commissioner Powers visited the site with
Commissioner Huppert and showed him the impact of the density on the site.
Commissioner Huppert stated he believes Commissioner Powers was correct,
the request was too dense for the property. Commissioner Powers thanked
Commissioner Huppert for his receptiveness to looking at the site.

Ms. Hair noted that staff is waiting for Town Council’s direction to fill the open
Planning Commissioner seats. Commissioner Hedrick was unfortunately, not
reappointed and Commissioner Dorsett has resigned.

Chairperson Moore stated the Planning Commission will be electing officers at
the next meeting. Ms. Hair confirmed.

There being no more business, Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m.

CA«EBW A A

Craig Moof¢, Chairperson Nichole Hair, Secretary """




